#### BYLAWS OF

## GADDIS ESTATES HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

### Article I. Offices

Section 1. The principal office of the Corporation in the State of Iowa shall be located in the County of Johnson. The Corporation may have such other offices, either within or without the State of Iowa, as the Board of Directors may designate or as the business of the Corporation may require from time to time.

### Article II. Definitions

- Section 1. All terms used herein shall have the meaning given thereto in the Declaration unless expressly stated to the contrary herein.
- Section 2. "Association" shall mean the Gaddis Estates Homeowners Association.
- Section 3. "Articles of Incorporation" shall mean the Articles of Incorporation of the Association, as amended from time to time.
- Section 4. "Bylaws" shall mean the Bylaws of the Association, as amended from time to time.
- Section 5. "Director" shall mean a member of the Association's Board of Directors.
- Section 6 "First Board of Directors" or "First Board" shall mean the Board of Directors elected by the members and shall not mean the "Initial Board of Directors."
- Section 7. "Initial Board of Directors" or "Initial Board" shall mean the Board of Directors appointed in the Articles consisting of \_\_\_\_\_\_\_.
- Section 8. "Member" shall mean those persons entitled to membership in the Association as provided in the Declaration.
- Section 9. "Property" shall mean any lot in Gaddis Estates.
- Section 10. "Owner" shall mean any person, firm, corporation, or other entity which owns property in Gaddis Estates Homeowners Association.

References to "he" or "him" shall include the feminine gender as well as the masculine.

# Article III. Members, Meetings and Voting Rights

Section 1. <u>Composition and Powers.</u> Every owner shall be a member of the Association and shall continue to be a member for so long as he owns property. Membership shall be appurtenant to, and may not be separated from the ownership of property.

Except as otherwise provided in these bylaws, all action to be taken or authorized by the members shall be deemed validly taken or authorized upon adoption by vote of a majority of the members present, in person or by proxy, at any properly called meeting at which a quorum is present, in person or by proxy.

## Section 2. Annual Meetings.

- a. The first annual meeting of the members shall be held when called, upon ten (10) days prior written notice to the members, by the "Initial Board of Directors: of the Association.
- b. Thereafter, the annual meeting of the members shall be held on the third Monday in the month of March of each year at 7:00 P.M. If the day for the annual meeting will be held at the same hour on the first day following which is not a legal holiday.
- c. At the annual meeting, members shall elect directors, approve and adopt an annual budget, confirm appointment of committees and transact such other business as may otherwise be scheduled or which may properly be brought before the meeting.
- Section 3. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members may be called at any time by the President or by a majority of the Board of Directors, or upon written request of a majority of the owners.

## Section 4. Notice of Meetings.

Written Notice. Written notice of each meeting of the members shall be given by, or at the direction of, the Secretary or a person authorized to call the meeting, by mailing a copy of such notice, postage pre-paid at least ten (10) days before such meeting to each member entitled to vote, addressed to the member's address last appearing on the books of the Association, or supplied in writing by such member to the Association for the purpose of notice. Such notice shall specify the place, date and hour of the meeting, and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose of the meeting.

Section 5. Quorum and Adjournment. The presence at any meeting, in person or by proxy, of 60% of those members entitled to cast a vote in the Association shall constitute a quorum for any action, unless this item is amended. Any meeting of the Association, whether annual or special, may be adjourned from time to time, as long as those present have notice of any new

meeting. At any adjourned meeting, any business may be transacted which might have been transacted at the original meeting as originally called.

Section 6. Proxies. Proxy voting will not be allowed.

Section 7. <u>Voting.</u> Each member shall have a vote in the Association on the basis of one vote for each property owned by such member. Any vote may be taken by voice or by show of hands.

Article IV. Board of Directors

Section 1. General Powers. The business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed by its Board of Directors.

Section 2. Number, Tenure and Qualifications. The affairs of the Association shall be managed by a Board of three directors which shall be appointed by the initial Board. Thereafter, the directors shall be elected by and from the membership at its annual meeting and shall act as such until their successors are duly elected and qualified.

Section 3. <u>Compensation.</u> By resolution of the Board of Directors, a director may be paid for his or her actual expenses in the performance of his or her duties. However, no director shall receive compensation for attending meetings of the Board of Directors. However, nothing shall preclude any director from serving the Association in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefore.

Section 4. Quorum. At meetings of the Board of Directors two directors shall constitute a quorum. If a quorum is not present, at the meeting of the Board of Directors, the director present may adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until the quorum is present.

Section 5. <u>Action Taken Without a Meeting</u>. The directors shall have the right to take any action without a meeting which they could take at a meeting by obtaining the written approval of all the directors. Any action so approved shall have the same effect as though taken at a meeting of the Directors.

Section 6. <u>Nominations</u>. Nominations for election to the Board of Directors may be made from the floor of the annual meeting.

Section 7. <u>Elections.</u> Election to the Board of Directors shall occur at a regular or special meeting of the Association.

Section 8. <u>Meetings.</u> Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held when called by the President or at written request of the other members of the board after not less than three days

written notice to such director, which notice may be waived by attendance at the meeting or by written waiver.

PITTON LHW P.C.

- Section 9. Procedure. The Board of Directors shall keep regular minutes of its proceedings. The minutes shall be placed in the minute book of the Association.
- Section 10. Power and Duties. The Board of Directors, for the benefit of the members, shall have the following powers and duties:
  - To exercise for the Association all powers, duties and authority vested in or delegated to this Association and not reserved by the membership by other provisions of these Bylaws or Articles of Incorporation.
  - To take all such lawful action as the Board of Directors may determine to be b. necessary, advisable or convenient to effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Articles of Incorporation, and Bylaws.
  - To purchase and maintain as a common expense adequate general liability insurance and to purchase and maintain officers' and directors' liability insurance.
  - To perform any and all duties imposed on or powers allowed to the Board of d. Directors by applicable law.

## Article V. Officers and their Duties.

- Number. The officers of the Association shall be a president, and a secretary and treasurer (each of whom shall be elected by the Board of Directors). Such other officers and assistant officers as may be deemed necessary may be elected or appointed by the Board.
- Section 2. Election and Duration of Office. The officers of this Association to be elected by the Board of Directors shall be elected annually by the Board at the first meeting of the Board of Directors held after each annual meeting of the members. If the election of officers shall not be held at such meeting, such election shall be held as soon as possible thereafter. Each officer shall hold office until his successor shall have been duly elected and shall have qualified or until his death or until he shall resign or shall have been removed in the manner hereinafter provided.
- Section 3. Removal. Any officer or agent elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board of Directors whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Association would be served thereby, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person so removed. Election or appointment shall not of itself create contract rights.

- Section 4. <u>Vacancies.</u> A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or otherwise may be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.
- Section 5. President. The president shall be the principal executive officer of the Association and, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, shall in general supervise and control all of the business and affairs of the Association. In general he shall perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.
- Section 6. The Secretary. The Secretary shall:
  - a. Keep the minutes of the Board of Directors meetings in a book provided for the purpose;
  - b. See that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws or as required by law;
  - c. In general, perform all duties incident to the office of the Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the President or by the Board of Directors.
- Section 7. The Treasurer. If required by the Board of Directors the Treasurer shall give a bond for the faithful discharge of his duties in such sum and with such surety or sureties as the Board of Directors shall determine. He shall in general perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the President or by the Board of Directors.

Article VI. Budget and Assessment.

It shall be the duty of the Board during the last quarter of each calendar year, and at least thirty (30) days prior to the Associations annual meeting, to prepare a budget covering the estimated cost of operating the Association during the coming year including an adequate reserve fund. Such budget shall include a reasonable allowance for contingencies and reserves for maintenance and repairs.

The Board shall cause the budget and the assessments to be levied against each property for the following year which shall be delivered to each member at least fifteen (15) days prior to the meeting. The budget and the assessments shall become effective unless disapproved at the annual meeting by a vote of the majority of the total Association membership. Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, in the event the membership disapproves the proposed budget or the Board fails for any reason to so determine the budget for the succeeding year then and until such

time as a budget shall have been determined as provided herein, the budget in effect for the then current year shall continue for the succeeding year.

Article VII. Contracts, Loans, Checks and Deposits.

Section 1. <u>Contracts.</u> The Board of Directors may authorize any officer or officers agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Association, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

Section 2. <u>Loans.</u> No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Association and no evidences of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by a resolution of the Board of Directors. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

Section 3. Checks, Drafts, Etc. All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money, notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Association, shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the Association and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.

Section 4. <u>Deposits.</u> All funds of the corporation not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Association in such banks, or other depositories as the Board of Directors may select.

Article VIII. Miscellaneous

Section 1. <u>Covenants to Obey Law, Rules and Regulations.</u> Each member shall abide by the Bylaws and rules and regulations as the same are or may from time to time be established by the Board of Directors. Each member shall observe, comply with, and perform all rules, regulations, ordinances, and laws made by any governmental authority of any municipal, state and federal government having jurisdiction over the property or any part thereof.

Section 2. Amendment. These Bylaws may be amended at a regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors by a vote of 60% of the members.

Section 3. <u>Conflicts.</u> In the case of any conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation shall control.

Article IX. Seal

This Association shall have no scal.

GADDIS ESTATES HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

By Aulli & Fells-

PRESIDENT

By My C lelly

, SECRETARY

State of Iowa	)			
County of Johnson	) ss: )			
On thisNotary Public in and fo		, 2002 befor rsonally appeared onally known, who, l		
say that they are the Pro foregoing instrument th was signed on behalf of	esident and Secretary of at no seal has been profit the corporation by au	of the Corporation exc ocured by the said con	ecuting the within poration; that sa f Directors; and t	n and id instrument that
instrument to be the volexecuted.	untary act and deed of	the corporation, by i	t and by them vo	luntarily
	-			
Notary Public		•		

• .	
± 1	